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15 Direct Examination by Mr. Robinson ----------- 6700
Voir Dire Examination by Mr. Beaudikofer ----- 6712
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1 THE COURT: Sometimes you can't avoid that little
2 opening headline. But aslong as you don't read the text
3 of it, | think you're okay.

4 And the other thing that occurred to meis

5 that -- | surewish | had the authority to march you all

6 over the health department and get you flu shots.

7 JUROR NO. 6: Arethey open at noon? That's my

8 plan.

9 THE COURT: Good. | got mine Friday. They're

10 running out of vaccine. Apparently thisisaredly bad
11 strain of flu going on. And | don't want to lose any of
12 youfolks. So | appreciateit if you did.

13 Now, let'ssee. Dr. Swawell, could you come

14 onup, Sir.

15 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: Y our Honor, could we make a
16 further inquiry to seeif anyone talked to them about the
17 contents of that article?

18 THE COURT: Did anybody talk to you about the

19 article or attempt to discuss the article with you?
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20 (The jury panel answers collectively in

21 the negative.)

22 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.
23 All right. Doctor, you're still under oath.

24 And apparently there was aline of questioning that

25 Mr. Robinson neglected or failed or didn't remember to
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1 ask you about Friday. So I'm going to let him reopen on
2 that. Go ahead.

3 MR. ROBINSON: Thank you very much.

5 DIRECT EXAMINATION (RESUMED)

6 BY MR. ROBINSON:

7 Q. Just briefly, doctor.

8 Doctor, | would liketo giveyou a

9 hypothetical. Let's assume that there is a weapon

10 approximately eight and a half inchesin length, three
11 quarter inchesin width at its widest point, and one inch
12 thick at itsthickest point. Let'sfurther assume that

13 thisweapon was sharpened to a point on one end with a
14 white cloth wrapped around the other end for a handle,
15 and the handle measured approximately two inchesin
16 length.

17 Based upon the injuries or the wounds or the

18 stab wounds that you referred to in your testimony on

19 Friday, would that weapon be consistent with the type of
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20 weapon used to inflict those wounds?

21 A. Yes.

22 MR. ROBINSON: Thank you very much.
23 Nothing further, your Honor.

24  THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

25 Mr. Beaudikofer.
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION (RESUMED)

2 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

3 Q. Good morning, doctor.

4 To clarify, we spoke alittle bit after the

5 close of testimony last week, correct?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Andthat wasin the presence of at least part

8 of the time with Mr. Robinson.

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Okay. And then we spoke alittle bit of the

11 time, | guess you would say, outside of his presence or
12 inprivate, correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. Did you have occasion, since our discussion, in
15 taking with Mr. Robinson about the contents of our
16 conversation?

17 A. No.

18 Q. What exactly isit that aforensic pathologist

19 do?
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20 A. Waéll, we study the pathology of injuries. And
21 generally what we do is autopsy examinations on people
22 who die under various circumstances, as | mentioned

23 before. And part of that is documenting injuries to the
24 extent that we can and determining the cause of death.

25 Q. Andin the process of making examinations and
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1 evauating injuries, do you occasionally make references

2 to other sources of information, for example, toxicology

3 reports, police reports?

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. Okay. Andwhat isthe purpose of making

6 referenceto the other sources of information?

7 A. Part of what we do in determining the cause of

8 death isto consider all the information that is

9 available. And sometimes we need that information to be
10 ableto tell why somebody died. For instance, if

11 somebody dies from a drug overdose, we obviously need to
12 do drug testing to determine that.

13 Q. Didyou make references to any of the reports

14 in connection with your medical examination in this case?
15 A. The-- I'mtryingto think. | remember seeing

16 thetoxicology report. And the other thing | had, as|

17 mentioned before, was the autopsy memo from the coroner's
18 office, whichisjust avery brief statement.

19 Q. Do you know what acriminalist is?
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20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Do you know what a crime scene technician is?

22 A. Yes

23 Q. Do you know what a serologist is?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Do you know what a blood splatter expert is?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. What isacriminalist?

3 A. A criminalist is usually someone that -- well,

4 someone that has special training in criminology. Andin
5 particular, they're interested in things related to crime

6 sceneinvestigation, evidence collection, and analysis.

7 Q. Andinthe case of ahomicideinvolving asharp

8 instrument, which was apparent in this case, isit common
9 for -- for them to -- for acriminalist to preserve blood

10 stain evidenceif it's available?

11 MR. ROBINSON: Ohbjection, your Honor, beyond the
12 scope of direct examination.

13 THE COURT: Wédll, itis. All right. Sustained.

14 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: So are you going to make us call
15 him back some other day?

16 THE COURT: I'm going to have to follow the rules.
17 1'm going to turn square corners every chancel getin

18 thiscase. Soif that'swhat it's going to take, that's

19 what it's going to take.
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20 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

21 Q. Didyou refer to any criminalists reportsin

22 coming to your conclusions?

23 A. No.

24 Q. Didyou refer to any serologist's report? What

25 isaserologist?
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1 A. A serologist is someone that worksin a

2 laboratory dealing with serology, which is an evaluation

3 of certain findingsin blood.

4 Q. Okay. For example?

5 A. Wdl, for example, they may be doing D.N.A.

6 testing or testing of blood types or looking for evidence

7 of sex assault like semen.

8 Q. Did you see any reports concerning that kind of

9 examination?

10 A. No.

11 Q. What isablood stain specialist?

12 MR. ROBINSON: Again, your Honor, objection, beyond
13 the scope of direct examination.

14 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: He'sreferred to his report and
15 common habits of the way he works with people. | want to
16 ask himif hedid sointhiscase. And | want to start

17 by defining what they are so we'll know what he's talking
18 about.

19 THE COURT: Y our objection stands?
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20 MR. ROBINSON: Yes, your Honor.

21 THE COURT: | believeitis. I'll sustain the

22 objection.

23 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

24 Q. Areyou familiar with the term "agonal period"?

25 A. Yes
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1 Q. What isthat referred to?

2 And how isit spelled, just for the record?

3 A. A-g-o-n-al.

4 It refers to the period or the time during

5 which somebody is dying or the time around when the death
6 occurs.

7 Q. Sobasicaly it'sthetimeit takesto die from

8 theonset of theinjuries?

9 A. It--itwouldinclude that, yes.

10 Q. What else would it include?

11 A. Waédll, | mean, that's assuming that there are

12 injuries. And not everybody diesfrom injuries.

13 Q. Allright. Asit would apply in this case.

14 A. Right. | mean, obviously sometimesthereisa
15 big delay between the time of injury and when someone
16 dies.

17 Q. But we'retalking about in the case of

18 traumatic injuries, which is the presumed cause of death.

19 We're talking about the time from the receipt of the
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20 injuriesto the time the person dies. That would be
21 called the agonal period.

22 A. Itwould beif it isashort period of time.

23 Q. Okay. Can you define short for usin terms of
24 your understanding?

25 A. Minutes.
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1 Q. Minutes?

2 A. Orless.

3 Q. Soonthe outside, how many minutes are we
4 taking about? I'm talking about general now.

5 A. Thereisno -- | mean, thereis no defined

6 limit.

7 Q. Sowhen you said you didn't use hours, you

8 didn't use days.

9 A. Rignt.

10 Q. Sol assumethereissome parameters. Again,
11 I'm not being case specific.

12 A. | don't have any set time frame where | would
13 say thisis beyond what that is.

14 Q. But your particular use -- isthere agenerally
15 accepted term for use of agonal period?

16 A. Not in terms of numbers, no.

17 Q. Sowhen you say it was minutes, it could be
18 longer?

19 A. Waéll, it could be many minutes, sure.
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20 Q. All right. For example, someone gets poisoned.
21 From the onset of poison to death could be severa hours?
22 A. Could be, sure.

23 Q. And that would be referring to the agonal

24 period?

25 A. It could be.
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1 Q. Why wouldn't it be?

2 A. Wédll, obvioudly, like | said, at some point,

3 you know, if you get brain damage and you die ten years
4 later, you wouldn't consider that ten-year period an

5 agonal period. Agonal just mean the time shortly around
6 thetime of death or close to the time of death.

7 Q. And it could be minutes or many minutes?

8 A. Yeah.

9 Q. And does the agonal period -- in your

10 determination, does that provide information as to what
11 the decedent was able to do before his death and have
12 importance on that issue?

13 A. It could.

14 Q. For example, a person had three minutes from
15 theonset of injuriesto his death, he couldn't write a

16 book presumably, correct?

17 A. Right.

18 Q. Sothere would be limitations on the amount of

19 activity, correct?
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20 A. Rignht.

21 Q. lsn'tit truethat people rarely drop dead

22 immediately from traumatic injury?

23 A. Waéll, it really depends on the nature of the
24 injury.

25 Q. lsn't that "drop dead" immediately usually
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1 confined to devastating central nervous system injuries

2 or deep brain injuries?

3 A. Yes

4 Q. Infact, isn't it true that there iswell

5 documented casesin the forensic literature of people

6 actually be shot in the heart across the room and done

7 dgignificant activity?

8 A. Yeah.

9 Q. And even people with seemingly major brain

10 injuries may be able to speak out.

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And do other voluntary activity for a

13 considerable period of time.

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Isn'tittruethat it's difficult to be sure,

16 judging from the body alone -- an examination of the body
17 aone, how long the agonal period may have been and what
18 type of activity a person might be able to do during that

19 period?
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20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Andisn't it true that anatomic abnormality or
22 injuriesdon't always correlate with the degree or type
23 of impairment the person might suffer?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Physical factors about a person's agonal
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1 activity, such aslocation of the injury and the amount
2 of tissue damage, plays a significant role on what the
3 activity might be.

4 A. ltcan. Certainly.

5 Q. Andthenthereis psychological factors that

6 also comeinto play, correct?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. And they can be unpredictable.

9 A. Yes

10 Q. Andso | think we agree that not many injuries
11 occur where incapacitation isimmediate except spinal
12 cord and deep brain injuries.

13 A. Right. And the other thing would be extensive
14 multipleinjurieslike in some motor vehicle accidents
15 whereit's devastating injuries.

16 Q. Andjust so we have that in balance, what are
17 we -- what kind of injuries are we talking? There are
18 lots of vehicle accidents where that doesn't occur,

19 correct?
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20 A. Yeah. I'mtaking about severe cases where
21 obviously people dieright away.

22 Q. For example, what kind of injuries are we
23 talking about?

24 A. Multiple fractures, multiple injuriesto

25 internal organs.
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1 Q. The determination of when a person can function
2 during the agonal or the extended -- could function

3 during the agonal period might be difficult to address

4 Dbecause of the variability among victims and the

5 psychological and physiological makeup?

6 A. Yes

7 Q. Not all people aretypical in the way their

8 muscles and nerves are assembl ed.

9 A. True.

10 Q. Socategorica statements about anatomic

11 functional relationships are sometimes difficult to make
12 and could be misleading in terms of what the activity
13 might occur during an agonal period.

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Sometimes people have what they call backup
16 mechanism. For example, if apart isinjured, there may
17 be some other way to accomplish an activity, even though
18 the normal functioning system has been damaged?

19 A. Yes
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20 Q. Andisn't it true that people with stab wounds

21 through the heart have run for blocks before collapsing?
22 A. That can happen, yes.

23 Q. | don't know if | said that, but people can

24 awaken from a seemingly irreversible coma?

25 A. Yes
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1 Q. Another example would be that people shot

2 through the frontal lobes of the brain amost immediately
3 become unconscious, correct? Most people --

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. But afew do not.

6 A. Yes

7 Q. Andisn'tit true that one factor that limits

8 the ability of forensic pathologists to determine the

9 parameters of avoluntary victim activity -- in other

10 words, what a person in the agonal period can or cannot
11 do -- issomewhat limited by the assent of dissection

12 entailed in the normal autopsy?

13 A. Itcanbe.

14 Q. Now, did you have an estimate of the agonal

15 period in this particular case, the one involving Inmate
16 Richmond?

17 A. Only aballpark figure. Obvioudly, | don't

18 know for sure.

19 Q. What was your ballpark figure?
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20 A. | would say it would be several minutes.

21 Q. You conducted an autopsy of Mr. Richmond,
22 correct?

23 A. Yes

24 Q. Doyou havethat in front of you?

25 A. Yes
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1 Q. The protocol you used or the series of steps
2 you used, could you just give us a quick outline of what
3 that would have been?

4 A. Intermsof -- I'm not quite sure | understand.

(@)
O

What you did first and so on.

o
>

During the course of the autopsy?

Yes.

\l
> O

Well --

9 Q. I'mtalking about in general terms. For

10 example, external examination and then go through the
11 organs.

12 A. Right, right.

13 Generdly it starts with what we call the

14 externa examination, which isthe looking at the body
15 from the outside, basically looking at the general

16 featuresand items that are on the body and, of course,
17 theinjuriesthat are apparent from the outside.

18 And the second part is the internal examination

19 where we look at the inside of the body, go through the
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20 same thing with the individual organs and the body
21 cavitiesand looking at -- for diseases and also for
22 injuries.

23 Q. Inyour report, you gave an external

24 description of Mr. Richmond, correct?

25 A. Yes
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1 Q. And your determination of him was that he was

2 well developed, thin, but muscular, nonembal med

3 Caucasian, correct?

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. What does that mean?

6 A. Which part?

7 Q. It'son Page 3 of the report under first

8 sentence under external description.

9 A. I'msorry. | didn't quite understand what

10 you're asking.

11 Q. You describe him as awell developed, thin, but
12 muscular, nonembalmed Caucasian. What does well

13 developed, thin, but muscular mean to you?

14 A. Weéll developed means, in terms of his general

15 physique, normal development. He wasn't handicapped in
16 the physical sense that there is something wrong with his
17 armsor legsthat is apparent by looking at him, normal
18 body features, and that kind of thing.

19 Thin, but muscular obviously to some extent is
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20 subjective. But even though he looked thin, he did seem
21 to have well developed musculature.

22 Q. You stated that rigor was well devel oped,

23 correct?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. What doesthat mean?
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1 A. That meansthat at the time of the autopsy, the
2 rigor mortis was quite firm, probably optimal.

3 Q. Optima meaning the maximum it could get?
4 A. Right.

5 Q. And that was around 10:46 the Sth, if | recall?
6 A. Wédll, the autopsy started at 10:52 in the

7 morning. So it would have been some time shortly

8 theresfter.

9 Q. The-- did you examine him to seeif he had
10 tattoos on him?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. What was the purpose of that?

13 A. Wdll, it's part of the general description of

14 thebody. As| mentioned, one of the thingswe do isto
15 document what is there and not there.

16 Q. And could you tell us, did you discover any
17 tattoos on his body?

18 A. Yes, yes. Severd tattoos.

19 Q. What were they?
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20 A. Onthe-- on theleft upper arm was a tattoo

21 that included a couple of skulls. That's the tattoo that

22 you could seein some of the photographs because thereis
23 one of the stab wounds that was in that area. He had

24 small tattoos on the back of the left hand including a

25 couple of lightning bolts.
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1 Q. Could you show us where that would be on your
2 own hand?

3 A. It would be somewhere around herein this area.
4 Q. Pointing on -- why don't you tell --

5 A. Wél, what | cal theweb, whichiskind of the
6 areabetween the thumb and the index finger.

7 There is also some |etters tattooed on the left

8 forearm.

9 Q. And what were those?

10 A. | don't know what letters they were. |

11 couldn't read them. There werethe letters"F," "E" on
12 hisleft thigh.

13 Q. "F""E"?

14 A. And thereisanother cut, too, on the right

15 upper forearm near the crook of the arm.

16 Q. That was aletter tattoo?

17 A. Yes. | don't know what letter it was.

18 Q. Okay. And thenyou -- do you know what the

19 significance of the skulls would be?
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20 MR. ROBINSON: Ohbjection, your Honor, beyond the
21 scope of direct examination. And | don't see the

22 relevance of it aswell.

23 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: Y our Honor, he did make an
24 examination of the body. He did note that down in the

25 report that he referred to. | would be ask that | can
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1 be--

2 THE COURT: I'll sustain the objection.

3 | also don't think that there is afoundation

4 that amedica doctor would know what atattoo signifies.
5 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: That may betrue. That'swhy |
6 ask him.

7  THE COURT: But anyway --

8 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

9 Q. Arethey important -- let mejust go on.

10 This apparently was important enough to put in
11 your report. And what was the purpose of that?

12 A. WEéll, as| mentioned, we document what is on
13 thebody. Evenif we're not interpreting it, I'm just

14 documenting what isthere. It can be helpful sometimes
15 likeinan identification. If someoneis not identified

16 or someone wants to confirm the identity, tattoos is one
17 way that could be done.

18 Q. Okay. Just -- you said that there was a couple

19 of small lightning bolts tattooed on the | eft dorsal web;
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20 isthat correct?

21 MR. ROBINSON: Same objection.

22 THE COURT: What's that?

23 MR. ROBINSON: Same objection.

24 THE COURT: He's already testified to that.

25 MR. ROBINSON: It's still not relevant.
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1 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: I'm going over hisreport. |
2 don't think I'm limited to --

3 THE COURT: I'll overrule the relevance because he
4 aready testified toit. Thereisno sense sustaining an
5 objection at this point.

6 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

7 Q. All right. That was -- when you say a couple,
8 just two?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Now, you made an -- oh, you also noticed that
11 therewasa-- well, in the next sentence down, you

12 noticed that there was a scar on the right forearm.

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. Could you describe that?

15 A. Onthe-- onthefront side of the right

16 forearm was a superficial scar that wasan inchin

17 length. | don't remember exactly the details of it.

18 Q. Okay. But it was apparently not related to

19 thisincident?
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20 A. No. It wasascar or something. That wasall.

21 Q. Couldit have been a stab wound?

22 A. It could have been at one time.

23 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: | don't know how we're going to do
24 this, but I'm going to ask the doctor just to -- where

25 I'mgoing -- he said there were the stab wounds. But
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1 there were other injuries that were noted. I'm going to

2 ask him to put them on the chart so we have an idea of

3 what wasinvolved. Let'sseeif | can-- | realy don't

4 want to stand behind it like Mr. Robinson did.

5 Q. Wasthere evidence of external injuries apart

6 from the stab wound that you described on direct

7 examination?

8 A. Yes. Therewereafew -- as| mentioned

9 before, some abrasions and some small cuts.

10 Q. Did you catalogue those?

11 A. Yes. | described them in my report.

12 Q. All right. So we can have abalanced view,

13 I'vegot ared pen for the external injuries. And if you
14 could -- we can go one by one. And if you can -- | don't
15 know if you comfortably can do this. But describe where
16 they were and then place them on the diagram.

17 A. Okay. Well --

18 Q. I'll doit one by one, if that will help.

19 Did you notice that on the right side of the
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20 upper nose, there was an one eighth inch superficial red
21 abrasion?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. Okay. Could you put that on the chart?

24 A. Actualy, | aready marked alot of these

25 injurieson the chart. Do you want meto mark over it?
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1 Q. | think what you put on those was the stab

2 wounds, correct?

3 A. No. | aso put on the other injuries, some of
4 the abrasions and cuts.

5 Q. Allright. Well, let'sjust -- if it's

6 duplicative, I'll indicate where they are. | don't think
7 thereisanything indicating there is an abrasion on the
8 nose.

9 First of all, what is an abrasion?

10 A. An abrasion isascrape of the skin where the
11 superficial layers of the skin gets scraped off.

12 Q. What does superficial mean?

13 A. It meansit's not deep.

14 Q. Okay. Isthat the general use of superficial?
15 Depth?

16 A. Whenl useit, yes. Yes, it'sreferring to the
17 depth.

18 Q. All right. When you useit for sure.

19  A. (Shakes head).
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20 Q. All right. Could you show us where that

21 abrasion was?

22 A. Okay. | marked it herein blue. I'm goingto
23 makeit alittle bigger, just so you can tell where it
24 is,

25 Q. | can't seeit.
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1 A. Yeah. | know you got to be closeto see. It's

2 just on the side of the nose, on theright side, a

3 little-- it actually only measured an eighth of an inch

4 right here.

5 Q. Could we make -- draw alittlelineto it and

6 maybe make the letter "A" since that was not numbered?
7 Andwell cal it"S," "A" for superficial abrasion.

8 A. Okay.

9 MR. ROBINSON: Maybe the size, too, counsel.

10 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

11 Q. That would be great. One eighth of an inch.

12 A. Okay.

13 Q. Andthelateral left cheek near the angle of

14 thejaw has athree sixteenth superficial stab wound

15 which has adiagonal orientation and is about one quarter
16 inchin depth.

17 Did you write that?

18 A. Yes. And that refersto thiswound here. And

19 if you like, | can label that.
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20 Q. "B," markit. Just pull it out.

21 A. (Indicating).

22 Q. And that would be superficia stab wound?

23 A. Yes. | did count that as one of the stab

24 wounds, even though it was only three sixteenths of an

25 inchinwidth. It wasaquarter inchin depth. And by
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1 definition, a stab wound is something deeper thanitis

2 wide. Soeven thoughit'ssmall, technically itisa

3 stab wound.

4 Q. Do you have an opinion of whether or not this

5 instrument that was described by Mr. Robinson caused that
6 particular injury?

7 A. It certainly is consistent with that.

8 Q. Okay. Now, consistent, what does that mean?

9 A. That meansit could have been caused by that.

10 Q. Okay. But there are other reasonable

11 possibilities?

12 A. Waéll, the thing with stab wounds is that

13 they're unlike trying to match abullet to agun. You

14 can't match up a stab wound to a particular weapon. All
15 you can say is consistent based on the dimensions and the
16 size. But obviously, there could be lots of kinds of

17 instruments, knivesthat look very similar and could

18 cause wounds that would appear very similar.

19 Q. Sowhenyou say -- and I've been doing alittle
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20 research over the weekend. When you say something is
21 consistent with or diagnostic of -- consistent just means
22 it'sone of the reasonable possibilities, correct?

23 A. Right. | can't say that -- you know, that it's

24 amatch.

25 Q. But that wound could have been caused by other
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1 activities beside the stab wound -- the instrument that

2 Mr. -- that counsel was apparently referring to.

3 A. Yes. It could have been caused by adifferent

4 instrument.

5 Q. Thereason | say it, thereis some evidence

6 that when the body came to rest, that his mouth was kind
7 of leaning to the left on the edge. Isit possible

8 that -- that something from the nature of that desk could
9 have caused that particular wound?

10 A. | couldn't say without seeing the desk. It

11 would have to be something sharp that was sticking out.
12 Q. Sosuperficial meansit's shallow, correct?

13 A. Right.

14 Q. Socanyouput"S" "W" assuperficial?

15 A. Sure.

16 MR. ROBINSON: Maybe the width and the depth of the
17 wound would be nice.

18 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: Yeah. That's great.

19 Q. Three sixteenths, quarter inch in depth.
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20 A. Okay.

21 Q. Theleft mid back hasavery -- "very" isthe
22 word -- superficial red-tan one by one half inch scrape
23 abrasion.

24 A. Yes. That refersto thisinjury here.

25 Q. Thatwould be"C."

6617

file://l/Reception/shareddocs/Useful %620material/Expert...1.%620(M edi cal %20Examiner)%202003-12-08%20(Barrett).txt (57 of 99) [1/8/2010 4:26:09 PM]



file:////Reception/shareddocs/Useful %20materi al/Expert%20transcripts/...0Christopher%201 .%20(M edi cal %620Exami ner)%202003-12-08%20(Barrett)..txt

1 A. (Indicating).

2 Q. Thedimensionsare --

3 A. Oneby one half inch.
4 Q. Oneby ahalf inch?
5 A. Okay.

6 Q. Andwell cal it"S""S" "A," superficial

7 scrape abrasion.

8 A. Okay.

9 Q. What doesthat mean? Scrape abrasion?

10 A. Waédl, it meansit's an abrasion caused by

11 friction that is going across the skin as opposed to
12 something that might be a more direct contact.

13 Q. Acrossthe skin. Doesthe skin have agrain?
14 A. Not redly.

15 Q. Okay. Soit'sascrape would be the easiest
16 way to describeit.

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Theleft lower back has a one quarter inch by

19 sixteenth inch superficial red-tan abrasion?
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20 A. Yes. That'sreferring to thisinjury here.

21 THE COURT: Just so everybody is aware, thereis
22 some students that are going to come in and view part of
23 trial. Soif you seealot of youngsters comein, that's
24 what that is about.

25 MR. ROBINSON: Thank you.
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1 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

2 Q. All right. And that would be"D"?

3 A. Okay.

4 Q. Andthe dimensions are a quarter by sixteenth
5 inch.

6 A. (Indicating). Okay.

7 Q. | don't know if we aready included this or

8 not. It may have. But the lateral to the left elbow is
9 anirregular one by half inch, red abrasion.

10 A. That'sthisone here.

11 Q. | want to distinguish these other injuries from
12 stab wounds. Soif we can put -- did we get the

13 dimensions aready?

14  A. Not yet.

15 Q. Okay. Oneand ahalf by three eighths. No.
16 Strikethat. That isincorrect.

17 It's an irregular one by half inch red

18 abrasion.

19 A. Okay. Do you want to label this"E"?
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20 Q. Yes, please.

21 A. Okay.

22 Q. Andwithin that area was a superficial three
23 eghthsinch cut, correct?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Could you tell uswhat acut is as opposed to
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1 anabrasion?

2 A. A cutisabreak inthe skin that is made by a

3 sharp object. Soit'susualy athin -- you know, like

4 thinline.

5 Q. All right. Sowe canthat have as"F" since

6 that, you've detailed as separately.

7 A. Okay.

8 Q. Ontheleft elbow dlightly medially isa

9 quarter inch red abrasion. Could you mark that and tell
10 uswhat itis?

11 A. Okay. That would be"G." It'san abrasion,

12 another scrape. That was on the elbow separate from the
13 other one that we just talked about.

14 Q. Onthe antero-latera left upper aam isavery
15 thin horizontal one quarter inch linear scrape, which is
16 appearsto be scabbed and older than the other injuries.
17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Allright. That would bewhat "F" or "G," |

19 guess.
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20 A. Thatwould be"H."

21 Q. H. Do you think that should be put there?

22 Does that appear to have been sustained at some other
23 time than the time of the --

24 A. Right. That'san older healing injury. So it

25 wouldn't have been related to any of these other ones.
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1 Q. Sowell leaveit off then, right?

2 A. Okay.

3 Q. Thedorsal left thumb extending from the joint

4 tothelateral edge of the nail has an aimost vertical

5 three quarter inch superficial linear cut.

6 A. Yes. That'sthe one here that we've labeled as

7 apotential -- potentially defensive wound.

8 Q. Now, | heard you use -- could we -- what -- we

9 have"A""B,”"C,)""D,""E,""F," and"G." What would
10 bethe next in order?

11 A. "H."

12 Q. "H"?

13 A. (Indicating).

14 Q. And then you indicate that the palmar surface

15 of the right hand near the web has an ovoid three

16 sixteenth by one eighth inch red denudation.

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Could you show -- indicate where that would be?

19 A. That'sthe one over here on theright. I'll

file:////Reception/shareddocs/Useful%20material/Expert...1.%20(M edi cal %620Examiner) %6202003- 12-08%20(Barrett).txt (64 of 99) [1/8/2010 4:26:09 PM]



file:////Reception/shareddocs/Usef ul %20material/Expert%20transcripty...0Christopher%201.%620(M edi cal %620Exami ner) %6202003- 12-08%20(Barrett).txt

20 label it"l."

21 Q. Ithink that'sit for the external. Those are
22 the externa injuriesthat you noticed apart from the
23 stab wounds, correct?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Andyou use the word "consistent" with -- as
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1 being areasonable possibility, correct, in connection

2 with the conclusion?

3 A. Yes

4 Q. All right. But it doesn't necessarily exclude

5 other possibilities that are reasonable.

6 A. That's correct.

7 Q. Defense 502 I'm going to hand you and ask you
8 if you can identify that.

9 A. Yes. Thisappearsto be aphotograph of his

10 left hand taken at or around the time of the autopsy.
11 Q. And that would be where on your chart?

12 A. Waédll, theleft hand over here. It'sakind of

13 a--it'skind of aside view of the hand. So you see

14 the thumb and the index finger. It does show that cut
15 that ison the -- on the thumb. And it also shows some
16 of the tattoo -- tattoos.

17 Q. Sothat'sonethat's potentially a defensive

18 wound?

19 A. Yes
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20 Q. It would be consistent with the defensive
21 wound?

22 A. Yes

23 Q. Isitafair assumption in your opinion that
24 those --

25 I'm sorry the people can't see them more
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1 easily. Maybe we can hold them up.

2 -- that the abrasions and the superficial

3 injuriesthat you've described, in addition to the stab
4 wound, are consistent with afact that a struggle might
5 have occurred during the agonal period?

6 A. Yes

7 Q. Soit would be consistent with the findings,

8 say, that death -- with your diagnosis, cause of death,
9 that there was actually a physical struggle before

10 Mr. Richmond was incapacitated.

11 A. It'sconsistent with that, yes.

12 Q. I'mgoing to go through your report now

13 concerning the stab wounds.

14 Y ou used the word that there were six stab

15 wounds that were potentially fatal, correct?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. When you say potentially fatal, what are --
18 what does that mean as opposed to being fatal ?

19 A. Wédl, if they werefatal, it would mean that
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20 that onewound killed you. Potentially fatal means --
21 weéll, in this case, since there were multiple wounds,
22 it'snot one single wound that resulted in the death.
23 It'sthe sum of the wounds. But thereissix of those
24 that potentially could have killed him by themselves.

25 Andthat'swhat | mean by that.
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1 Q. In connection with the potentially fatal,

2 counsel asked you if there was evidence of overkill. And
3 you said there was a -- you could say there was an

4 element of overkill.

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Now, overkill -- I've got my medical

7 dictionary. It'sanoldone. But | couldn't finditin

8 thedictionary. Doesthat surprise you?

9 A. No.

10 Q. Why isthat?

11 A. Becauseit's-- it'snot amedical term.

12 Q. Now, you define overkill as any wound in excess
13 of what would be necessary to cause death, correct?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. All right. Let me give you an example. Assume
16 an officer istrained to fear for his safety when he's

17 making felony arrests. Okay?

18 A. Okay.

19 Q. And he approaches afelony stopping a vehicle.
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20 Okay?

21 A. Okay.

22 Q. He seesthe suspect reach down apparently

23 underneath hisseat. And the suspect, bolting out of the
24 vehicle, charges at him with aknife in hand.

25 Hisreaction isto pull his weapon and to fire
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1 fivetimes. One perforates the stomach, and another the
2 liver, the heart, the lungs, and the brain. Five shots,

3 rapidfire.

4 Under your definition -- well, isn't it true

5 that each of the wounds I've described are potentially

6 enough to kill a person?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. So can we say because there are four woundsin
9 excess of what was necessary to kill him, that thisisa
10 case of overkill?

11 A. From apathologist's standpoint, | would say

12 that.

13 Q. Wadll, these words end up being bandied around
14 the courtroom like they have some big significance. And
15 thefactisisn't overkill, as opposed to a medical term,
16 more of apsychological term?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Anddoesntitinitstypical senserefer to

19 events where the number of death blows far and extremely

file:////Reception/shareddocs/Useful%20material/Expert...1.%20(M edi cal %620Examiner) %6202003- 12-08%20(Barrett).txt (72 of 99) [1/8/2010 4:26:09 PM]



file:////Reception/shareddocs/Usef ul %20material/Expert%20transcripty...0Christopher%201.%620(M edi cal %620Exami ner) %6202003- 12-08%20(Barrett).txt

20 exceed what is necessary to cause death?

21 MR. ROBINSON: Objection, your Honor, vague.
22 THE COURT: I'll sustainthat. Could you rephrase
23 that?

24 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: Yes, | can.

25 Q. Let megiveyou another example.
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1 Let's say there are reports from the |.V. Press

2 on anincident that occurred in Imperial County Jail are
3 true. Aninmateisfound in hiscell on hisback with

4 multiple stab wounds. In fact, thereis about 140 of

5 them, and 114 of which are within a four-inch square of
6 hisheart. Would that be evidence of overkill?

7 MR. ROBINSON: Objection, your Honor. It's not
8 relevant. Andit'sabased on a hypothetical that has no
9 foundation. So those are my objections.

10 THE COURT: All right. Well, I think you opened
11 thisoverkill issueup. So I'll allow that.

12 MR. ROBINSON: But can't we have a hypothetical
13 based upon the factsin this case as opposed to some case
14 that is not even before the Court?

15 THE COURT: That's aways preferable. But if he
16 wantsto analogize things, | think he can do that.

17 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

18 Q. Didyou do the autopsy on that alleged -- on

19 theinmate that that happened to?
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20 A. No.

21 Q. Would that be evidence of overkill?

22 A. | would say so.

23 Q. Infact, that would be evidence that there was

24 an extreme amount of excessive blows necessary to cause

25 death, correct?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Andoverkill, isn't that aterm -- a

3 psychological term that usually refersto aragethat is

4 associated with a homicide?

5 A. | don't know. When | used the term, | used it

6 inapathologic sense from the standpoint of

7 pathologists.

8 Q. But you're not surprised it's not in the

9 dictionary.

10 A. No.

11 Q. Isn'tit afact that overkill needsto be

12 tempered with an examination of the situation to

13 determine whether or not the use of amount of blows or
14 death blowsis excessive?

15 A. Weéll, | think that you need to define what you
16 mean by overkill because it may mean something different
17 to methan it doesto you than it doesto anybody elsein
18 this courtroom.

19 And when | use theterm, | was using it looking
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20 atit asapathologist and looking strictly at the

21 injuries and not looking at the scene. 1I'm not looking
22 at the psychological profile and so on.

23 Q. Wereyou -- | can't remember. Were you

24 given -- were you made reference to one of the exhibits

25 showing the cell, arepresentation of the cell in this
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1 case? Do you remember that?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Widl, let me do that.

4 MR. ROBINSON: Y our Honor, now | do believe we're
5 going beyond the direct examination of my questioning of
6 thiswitness.

7 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: WEe're going to use hypotheticals.
8 THE COURT: WEéll, wait aminute. Y ou haveto stay
9 within the bounds of the direct. So how does that relate

10 tothedirect testimony?

11 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: Because | want to talk about
12 overkill inthe situation where the person to whom it

13 applies as being described isin avery small confined

14 space.

15 THE COURT: Wédll, I'm worried we're getting beyond
16 the expertise of thiswitness. | don't know that thisis

17 something that he would have training in.

18 But if you do, then that's fine.

19 | think you'll need to lay afoundation first.
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20 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: He's used the word and | want to
21 exploreit and al of its ramifications.

22 THE COURT: You might need another type of expertis
23 adl I'mtelling you.

24 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: He brought it up.

25 THE COURT: | know.
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1 MR. BEAUDIKOFER: If it'sgoing to be bandied around
2 by the prosecution, | have --

3 THE COURT: WEe've got testimony it's not a medical
4 term. If you want to talk about this situation, you need

5 tolay afoundation.

6 BY MR. BEAUDIKOFER:

7 Q. Don't statements of overkill have to be

8 tempered by the situation in which the blows were

9 administered, for example, whether it was a confined

10 spaceor not?

11 A. Wedll, likel said, you have to defineit first

12 beforeyou can talk about it. And I'vetried to define

13 itinmy terms. Andin my terms, the answer is no.

14 Q. Soinyour terms, any blow in excess of what

15 would be necessary to kill someone would be overkill.

16 A. It could be, yes.

17 Q. You were asked some questions on whether or not
18 the decedent experienced pain, correct?

19 A. Yes
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20 Q. Were you making medically definitive statements
21 about the amount of pain that Mr. Richmond presumably
22 suffered during the agonal period?

23 A. | didn't -- | don't remember saying anything

24 about how much pain.

25 Q. What exactly ispain? | mean, we've al
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1 experienced it. But medically, when you use the word.
2 A. Widl, it's-- it's an unpleasant sensation that

3 iscarried by the nervous system to the brain.

4 Q. Anunpleasant sensation.

5 When you use the word "pain," were you making
6 any statements asto the severity of pain that

7 Mr. Richmond presumably had?

8 A. No.

9 Q. It could have been severe?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. It could have been mild?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. Painsare -- the experience of painisaresult
14 of acombination of factors, correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Some of them are physical.

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. For example, the number of nerve endings and

19 thelocation of the wounds, correct?
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20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Areorgansa-- typically densely populated
22 with nerves or sparsely?

23 A. It'svariable.

24 Q. Painissometimes described as acute or

25 diffuse, correct?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. What other descriptions are there for pain?

3 A. Wédll, thereisalot of terms that are used

4 you. Can have sharp pain, dull pain, steady pain,

5 throbbing pain.

6 Q. Canyou tell from an examination of

7 Mr. Richmond's body what kind of, if any, pain he

8 suffered?

9 A. No.

10 Q. Butin order to experience pain, there hasto
11 be some consciousness, correct?

12 A. At least to be aware of the pain, there has to
13 be.

14 Q. When | say experienceit, | guess| mean aware
15 of it.

16 A. | mean, unconscious people can react to pain.
17 Q. And that requires that the cerebral -- both

18 hemispheres of the cerebrum be intact, correct?

19 A. I'mnot sure -- I'm not sure about that.
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20 Q. Spina cord be intact of pathways to the brain.
21 A. Yes.

22 Q. And psychological factors might include a
23 person's experience with pain previoudly.

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Theanticipation of pain.
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Whether the person wasin fear or enraged.

3 A. Yes

4 Q. Andin fact, when people areinvolved in

5 traumatic situations or receiving traumatic injury,

6 endorphins may be released by the brain, correct?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. What are endorphins?

9 A. They are naturally occurring substances that

10 are-- react to the nerve endings. And they act likea

11 drug to block the sensations.

12 Q. Anexample -- what would be a common example to
13 help us understand what endorphins do?

14 A. Waéll, it could be a situation where you're like
15 an athlete who is exerting himself to an extreme degree,
16 but doesn't feel pain from that because of this action.

17 Q. Andthat isreferred to as analgesic effect.

18 A. Right. Whichisadulling of pain.

19 Q. It could even be ahigh in some instances.
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20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Isthere any way by making an autopsy and a

22 physical examination of that body to detect whether

23 endorphins were released into Mr. Richmond's body during
24 that timein the agonal period?

25 A. No.
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1 Q. Isthereany way to tell by just looking at --
2 well, first of all, let me strike that.
3 Fear and rage, they're controlled by the
4 hypothalamusin the limbic system, correct?
5 A. That's beyond my area of expertise.
6 Q. Areyou familiar with the word "epinephrine"?
7 A. Yes.
8 Q. What'sthat?
A. It'sanaturally occurring hormonethat is--

10 Q. Tha what?
A

11 . Wéll, it's also known as adrenaline.

12 Q. Okay.

13 A. Andit's produced like when the body is under
14 stress.

15 Q. Fight or flight reaction, for example?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Isthereany reliable post mortem measurement
18 of the epinephrine in the individual system?

19 A. No.
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20 Q. Sothereisnorealy way -- reliable way to

21 look at abody and to determine -- to make an assessment
22 of the effects epinephrine might have had during the

23 agonal period, correct?

24 A. Correct.

25 Q. lsn'titfair to say that looking at a body
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1 aone, that it isvery difficult, if not impossible, for

2 theforensic pathologist to determine from an autopsy
3 whether pain occurred, itstype, or its severity?

4 A. Widl, | think that when you look at injuries,

5 you can say that injury would have hurt. Now whether
6 that pain was perceived and how it was perceived, |

7 wouldn't be ableto say.

8 Q. Would it be a safer statement to say that the

9 particular injury islikely to have been accompanied by
10 discomfort?

11 A. Asopposed to pain?

12 Q. Just from looking at the body.

13 A. Waéll, from looking at the stab wounds, to me,
14 they look painful.

15 Q. Right. We don't need to go through the whole
16 assessment, though, because that's a subjective

17 determination, correct?

18 A. Waéll, unless he's paralyzed, | don't see how he

19 would not have pain from the injuries.
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20 Q. All right. But can you tell the severity?
21 A. No.

22 Q. Canyoutdl if it'sdiffuse?

23 A. No.
24 Q. Canyoutdl if it's acute?
25 A. Waéll, by definition it would be acute.
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1 Q. What can you tell about the pain except to say

2 that he probably had it?

3 A. That'sabout it.

4 Q. Right. Becauseit could be tempered by rage,

5 endorphins, epinephrine, adrenaline.

6 A. Rignt.

7 THE COURT: You know what? We're about ready to
8 take our morning break. And let's do that right now.

9 Don't discuss the case amongst yourselves or

10 with anybody else or form or express any opinions. Don't
11 do any independent research or investigation on the case.
12 L adies and gentlemen, we'll take approximately

13 a15-minute break.

14 But let's stay on the record. We've got

15 another mediarequest here. |s somebody here from

16 KSW.T.T.V.?

17 MILROSE BOSCO: (Indicating).

18 THE COURT: You can step down, by the way, doctor,

19 if you careto.
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20 THE COURT: You're requesting to photograph?

21 MILROSE BOSCO: Right. Camerainside the courtroom,
22 if possible.

23 THE COURT: WEéll, okay. One thing -- this request

24 was supposed to have been presented --

25 By the way, you can take your break, ladies and
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1 STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
2 ) SS.

3 COUNTY OF IMPERIAL )

6 I, SHIELAH D. MORGAN, CSR Number 3763, a
7 duly licensed shorthand reporter in and for the State of

8 Cadlfornia, and official reporter in and for the County

9 of Imperial, do hereby certify:

10 That | reported in shorthand the

11 proceedings held in the foregoing cause on the 8th day of
12 December, 2003. That the proceedings were reported

13 stenographically by me and later transcribed by computer
14 under my direction. That the foregoingisafull, true

15 and correct transcription of the proceedings taken at

16 that time.

17 In witness whereof, | have subscribed my

18 name this 13th day of April, 2004.

19
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20

21
22
SHIELAH D. MORGAN
23
C.S.R. Number 3763
24
25
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1 State of California )
2 ) SS.

3 County of Imperia )

6 |, Linda Parks, certified shorthand

7 reporter,

8 registered professional reporter, official reporter,

9 County of Imperial, State of California, do hereby

10 certify:

11 That | reported in shorthand the testimony
12 and proceedings held in the foregoing cause on the 8th
13 day of December, 2003; that the testimony and proceedings
14 were reported stenographically by me and later

15 transcribed by computer under my direction; that the
16 foregoing isatrue record of the testimony and

17 proceedingstaken at that time.

18 In witness whereof, | have subscribed my

19 name this 13th day of April, 2004.
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20

21

22

23 Linda Parks

24 C.S.R. No. 9625
25
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19
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